
1 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Riverdale City Council held Tuesday, June 21, 
2005 at 6:00 pm at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber Drive      
 
Members Present: Bruce Burrows, Mayor  
   Nancy Brough, Councilor  
   David Gibby, Councilor 
   Stan Hadden, Councilor 
   Stacey Haws, Councilor  
   Shelly Jenkins, Councilor  
 
Others Present: Larry Hansen, City Administrator  

Lynn Fortie, Business Administrator  
   Lynn Moulding, Public Works Director  
   Wayne Hoaldridge, Public Safety Director 
   Doug Illum, Fire Chief  

Stevin Brooks, City Attorney   
Jeff Woody, Inspector 
David Ermer, Fire Department 
Roswitha Thompson, Justice Court Clerk 
Cindi Mansell, City Recorder  

    
Jay Hudson  Michelle Heward   Lisa Rich 

    
Mayor Burrows called the meeting to order and welcomed those present.  Councilor Brough 
offered the Pledge of Allegiance.  Mayor Burrows read a quote from John Adams; followed 
by a Moment of Silence. 
 
Open Communications 
 Fire Department Recognition 
Mayor Burrows inquired as to the potential for Fire Department certification recognition 
this evening.   
 
Chief Illum stated recognition will be given on Monday, July 18, 2005 at 6:30 p.m. in 
conjunction with the Fire Department drill night to be held at the Fire Station.  He 
explained the presentation will involve department certification recognition in categories 
such as Firefighter I; Firefighter II; Officer; Hazmat Awareness; Hazmat Operations; and 
EMT Certificates.   
 
Chief Illum explained the awards consist of gold, silver, and bronze; with gold being the 
highest.  He stated Riverdale is to receive three areas of gold recognition and one silver. 
 
 Introduction of Interim Justice Court Judge Michelle Heward 
Mayor Burrows welcomed and introduced Michelle Heward, stating she has recently 
accepted the Interim Justice Court position with Riverdale. 
 



City Council Regular Meeting 
June 21, 2005 

2 

Ms. Heward thanked the Mayor and City Council for this opportunity.  She introduced her 
wonderful companion and sister, Lisa Rich.  She explained that she has been teaching in the 
Weber State University Criminal Justice Department for ten years; both in the Bachelor’s 
and Master’s programs.  She stated before that, she worked in the Weber County 
Attorney’s Office as the Deputy County Attorney; as well as in private practice.   
 
Ms. Heward stated she has a strong background in the law; and strong feelings about the 
justice system.  She explained she had started acting as a Justice Court Judge in South 
Ogden a couple of years ago and has enjoyed it; and is looking forward to the opportunity to 
serve Riverdale.  She stated her feeling is that most citizens, when they come into contact 
with the courts, it is with justice courts rather than district courts.  As a result, she feels 
it to be very important these citizens are treated with respect.  She explained this 
opportunity and the timing are perfect, as she has recently taken a sabbatical from 
teaching to perform research.   
 
Mayor Burrows thanked Ms. Heward, stating Riverdale is looking forward to this association. 
 
Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Burrows stated he received a letter addressed to Mr. Moulding in appreciation of the 
time and effort put forth by the City for the Frisbee Disk Golf Tournament.  He stated the 
letter indicated there were 45 participants; and the association is looking forward to having 
a great relationship with the City in the future.  He then presented a donation check in the 
amount of $100 from the Northern Utah Golf Association to be used for the construction 
of the proposed restrooms at the trail parking lot.  Mayor Burrows explained this is their 
contribution for the City allowing the use of various areas for disk golf.  He noted the City’s 
appreciation towards this Association. 
 
Mayor Burrows reported that Riverdale is hoping Washington Terrace City will be passing 
consideration of the engineered wetland interlocal agreement this evening.  He stated he 
will provide more details as they become available, and is hoping to move forward with this 
project in the near future. 
 
Administrative Report 
 Employee Recognition 
Mr. Hansen explained he would like to recognize four employees with five years or more of 
service as follows: 

• Roswitha Thompson  19 years 
• Jeff Woody   13 years 
• Dave Ermer     9 years 
• Benito Juarez     5 years 
• Sheri Boyington    3 years 
• Dannette Maisey    1 year 
• Pat Harrop     1 year 

 
Mr. Hansen offered recognition to those employees present:  Roswitha Thompson, Jeff 
Woody and Dave Ermer.  He explained Mr. Woody had recently been promoted from Public 



City Council Regular Meeting 
June 21, 2005 

3 

Works to the Community Development Building Inspector.  Mayor Burrows and Mr. Hansen 
expressed their appreciation and presented certificates and service awards to these 
employees. 
 
 Department Information 
Mr. Hansen explained the monthly report continues to address requests to inform the City 
Council as to happenings within each department.  He stated there is one new addition 
included in the monthly report entitled major project summary report; which includes a 
listing of those items that probably would be of interest not only to the City Council and 
Mayor, but to the residents as well.  Mr. Hansen stated staff has posted this information on 
the website as a link to enable public access.  He stated staff will continue to try and keep 
the major project status posted; and the report contains less routine day-to-day and more 
major information. 
 
Councilor Jenkins referenced the City Attorney project report; and inquired as to the 
Walker/Cevering water contracts.  Mr. Brooks explained the Cevering agreement has been 
finalized and the Walker agreement is very close.  Councilor Jenkins inquired as to 
direction, with Mr. Brooks stating he had prepared the agreements in line with what the 
engineer had set forth.  He explained this involves the area off 4400 South that has to do 
with the Carpenter pipe and water that has been in the open canal; and issues of not being 
able to locate any documents recorded in the State Engineer’s Office. 
 
Mr. Brooks stated the City has not agreed to any individual claim; and the contract is valid 
for the user’s life only.  He stated although access to the water would be there; it would be 
good for their lives only.  Councilor Jenkins inquired if something is determined to have 
been actually recorded.  Mr. Brooks stated nothing has been located; thus the reasoning for 
the time period. 
 
Mr. Brooks stated there could be some question on the Walker contract because they did 
present documentation from the State that indicated at some point of time there was a 
claim filed on a huge piece of ground.  He stated it is hard to determine how much of the 
property has been divided and resulting water rights.  He stated he composed the contract 
to indicate if they can show proof, the lifetime provision may be offered reconsideration. 
 
Councilor Haws stated he would like an Executive Summary of details: what these water 
agreements mean to the City; and what rights it provides.  Mr. Brooks stated he could 
prepare bullet points of the agreement terms or could even forward actual copies of the 
agreement to the Council.  The Council determined they would prefer the Executive 
Summary format. 
 
 Legislative Tax Force on Taxation 
Mr. Hansen stated he received information late this morning regarding a report from 
lobbyist Dave Spatafore in regards to the Legislative Task Force on Taxation.  He stated 
the subcommittees met on June 16, 2005 to divide up the different areas of tax legislation 
to be addressed.  He explained the local option sales tax focused entirely on distribution.  



City Council Regular Meeting 
June 21, 2005 

4 

An explanation was provided to the committee as to how it works; including a presentation 
from a State Tax Commission representative regarding revenues.   
 
Mr. Hansen discussed hold harmless provisions that could provide Riverdale and others 
protection as to what is collected in sales tax.  He stated this involves a complex process 
for calculation which is computerized administratively at the State Tax Commission.  He 
stated the subcommittee has approved a motion to have the League and the State Tax 
Commission and other parties prepare to come forward with a recommendation as to an 
allocation formula.  One of the entities has suggested that the formula be redesigned to 
base entirely off population. 
 
Mr. Hansen stated other issues include streamlined sales tax, point of delivery, point of 
sale, etc.  He stated the overall sentiment is that the formula needs to change; and whether 
Riverdale survives with some type of hold harmless provision will really depend on how well 
this case and the case of other cities like Riverdale are presented.  He stated he did 
provide Mr. Spatafore with general information regarding receipt and distribution of sales 
tax within the General Fund budget as a starting point to the Taxing Entity Subcommittee.  
Mr. Hansen stated it would appear that everything is on the table at this point, and 
Riverdale indeed may become vulnerable.   
 
Recorder’s Report 
Councilor Jenkins referenced the Mixed Use line of demarcation; and stated she had 
thought the Council had established those lines would not be firmly drawn and would 
possibly be more discretionary.  Mayor Burrows stated this has not been finalized.  
Councilor Haws stated he had thought the vote on the line of demarcation was considered, 
then mixed use came in and it was never completed.  He stated the Council is still waiting 
for the mixed use concept to return; at which time they may make a change in demarcation. 
 
Councilor Brough inquired as to whether any response has been received from the Army 
Core of Engineers in regards to trail access.  Mayor Burrows stated attempt was made again 
today; and Mrs. Limburg has been instructed to follow up. 
 
It was stated that the incident command badges have been received and this item can now 
be removed from the Recorder’s Report. 
 
Consent Items  

Approval of Minutes  
Mayor Burrows stated that the Council has been presented the minutes from the Regular 
Meeting of April 5; Work Session, Regular and Closed Executive Session from April 26; 
Work Session and Regular Meeting of June 7, 2005.  Councilor Brough addressed the 
Regular meeting minutes of June 7, 2005; stating she feels there are some parts of these 
that are in need of additional research prior to passing.  She stated she would recommend 
these minutes be tabled until the next regular meeting.  There appeared to be consensus to 
table the minutes. 

 
 



City Council Regular Meeting 
June 21, 2005 

5 

Report on Condition of the Treasury – May 31, 2005 
Mr. Fortie explained May was a typical month, and he would like to briefly review the 
highlights.  He referenced General Fund revenues and expenditures.  He mentioned the RDA 
financing draw from the bond proceeds that were issued for the Senior Center.  He 
referenced the $35,000 payment to Central Weber Sewer.   
 
Inquiry was raised as to the amount of revenue per month within Capital Projects, with 
Councilor Haws stating it seems strange to have over half the revenue coming in one month.  
Mr. Hansen explained Weber Pathways had donated $10,000 for the kayak amenity; and 
there was also $1200 accumulated interest on fund balance. 

 
Motion:  Councilor Brough moved to approve the common consent items as presented; and 

to table the minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 7, 2005.   Seconded by 
Councilor Jenkins.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
Consideration of Bids/Award of Contract – Parker Drive Trail & Parking Lot - #379 
Mr. Moulding stated some really good bid pricing was received in conjunction with the 
Parker Drive trail and parking lot.  He stated the low bid was Post Construction Company in 
the amount of $39,244; and staff would recommend approval of the bid to this company. 
 
Mayor Burrows inquired as to staff experience in working with this contractor.  Mr. 
Moulding stated although he has never used this firm as a contractor, he has worked with 
them as a subcontractor for others.  He explained they did the paving work at Riverdale 
Park; seem good to work with; and he sees no reason not to issue the contract. 
 
Councilor Jenkins expressed concern as to whether this firm is familiar with the geography 
of the area in question; and whether the bid includes knowledge of the potential to hit 
water or other concerns around the river when excavating.  Mr. Moulding stated 
encountering difficulties is always a possibility; however, he feels the appropriate bases 
have been covered and these types of issues will not be raised. 
 
Councilor Hadden inquired if a preliminary site investigation was part of the engineering 
design.  Councilor Haws further inquired if all contractors personally inspected the site.  
Councilor Hadden stated this requirement was placed on the contractor if within the 
contract; and if they did not inspect the site prior to bidding it becomes their problem.  
Inquiry was made as to whether this wording was included in the contract or drawings; with 
Mr. Moulding stating this is unknown, although he does feel the contractors were advised to 
visit the site. 
 
Councilor Jenkins inquired if part of the bid approval could be to include the contractor has 
actually been on-site; and perhaps this could be part of the actual contract.  Mr. Moulding 
stated he feels because of the location of the proposed parking lot, the contractor will not 
be cutting the ground down but will have to fill, compact, and bring the level up.  He stated 
staff feels good about the project.  Councilor Hadden stated compaction could be where the 
contractor runs into a water problem.  Mr. Moulding stated compaction is not difficult with 
road base, unless there is water.  He stated based on everything he has seen in this area he 



City Council Regular Meeting 
June 21, 2005 

6 

is not worried; as part of cleaning the site involved digging a huge hole to bury cement, and 
the only thing visible was river bottom gravel and sand. 
 
Motion Councilor Gibby moved for approval of the bids and award of contract to Post 

Construction Company in the amount of $39,244 for the Parker Drive Trail and 
Parking Lot – Project #379 as proposed.  Councilor Hadden seconded the motion.  

Jay Hudson approached the Mayor and Council.  He explained he is the actual person who 
found the funding to purchase the land in question from Union Pacific; and then facilitated 
the placement of the land from Ogden City into the hands of Riverdale City.  He stated he 
has looked at the proposed plans, and had thought when the agreement was made between 
Ogden and Riverdale to acquire the property; this would include having to put a trail under 
Parker Drive to connect with the Centennial Trail.  He expressed concern he did not see this 
on the plans. 
 
Mr. Hudson stated it would appear that the trail comes right up to Parker Drive, and he 
feels this will cause problems in the future.  He stated if there is a trail that is family-
oriented and hosts many bicycle riders and families; they will not be able to cross if they 
cannot get under Parker Drive.  He stated problems can result if there are events such as a 
5K or 10K run; as runners would not be able to get across unless the City is planning to stop 
traffic.  Mr. Hudson stated unless Riverdale is planning on going underneath Parker Drive in 
the immediate future, he would recommend saving money by not taking the trail from the 
south end of the parking lot up to the road.  He expressed further concern as to 
commitment on part of the City to go underneath. 
 
Mayor Burrows stated Riverdale does have a commitment; yet have not determined a 
timeframe until Ogden has an indication as to when they will have a trail to meet it.  Mr. 
Hudson stated money can be saved by not bringing the trail to the road and only to the 
south end of the parking lot.  Mr. Hansen stated such a change would take the form of a 
Change Order.  Mr. Moulding stated the bid unit includes this paving; and staff could choose 
the option to remove tonnage from the total contract. 
 
Councilor Brough stated she feels Mr. Hudson makes a valid point; and inquired if his 
suggestion should be part of the motion.  Mayor Burrows stated he feels staff has a unit 
bid price and has the ability to delete anything they would like. 
 
Discussion followed regarding the timeframe associated with Ogden’s trail; with Councilor 
Hadden stating some sort of tunnel or crossing is Riverdale’s responsibility at such time.  He 
stated this could involve an overpass, crossing, bridge, tunnel, etc.  Mr. Moulding stated he 
does not feel it would hurt to leave the contract as is.  Councilor Haws stated this does not 
include a huge distance or cost either way.  Mr. Hudson stated he was merely making a 
suggestion as an option to save money. 
 
Councilor Jenkins inquired if there will be safety issues with inviting traffic along the trail 
and ending at Parker Drive versus stopping at the parking lot.   She discussed concerns 
about how to enter off Parker Drive into that parking lot for that very reason, especially 
when considering the hairpin curve and no corner visibility.  Mayor Burrows stated logistics 



City Council Regular Meeting 
June 21, 2005 

7 

will have to be considered prior to proceeding one way or another.   Mr. Hudson stated the 
tunnel will be closer to the river; and not in the sidewalk location.  Councilor Brough stated 
it makes sense to not connect until it is known where it is going to connect on that section.   
 
Call to Question 

Roll call vote.  Councilor Jenkins, Yes; Councilor Hadden, Yes; Councilor Brough, 
Yes; Councilor Gibby, Yes; and Councilor Haws, Yes.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
Mayor Burrows inquired if inclination of the elected officials is to let Mr. Moulding use his 
best judgment.  Councilor Gibby stated he feels Mr. Moulding can determine the best option 
and should be granted latitude.  Councilor Jenkins stated she would like to consider 
possibilities or options, stating she feels the Council does need to be aware where the trail 
will end for the interim period. 
 
Councilor Haws inquired as to traffic safety concerns should the pathway come right up to 
Parker Drive.  Chief Hoaldridge stated he would suggest for safety reasons, it makes more 
sense to pave to the parking lot and end it there for the time being.  He stated for safety 
reasons, this could be completed at a later time.  Mr. Moulding stated when this project was 
first considered, a traffic engineer actually looked at this project.  He stated a tunnel will 
cost approximately $100,000; yet the traffic engineer had felt crossing could be done 
safely with a pedestrian crossing.  He discussed the issue of signage, stating he did not 
consider this option because there is no reason to put up crossing signs when there is 
nothing to cross to.  He stated if the crossing is to be a tunnel, he could cite the 
approximate location and the trail could be connected at a later time. 
 
Mr. Moulding stated to come back and do this later will cost more than just leaving it in the 
project at this time.  He stated he would estimate costs of $5,000-$6,000 now; and up to 
$20,000 later.  Councilor Haws inquired how much savings would be realized to remove the 
paving; because if the tunnel were done further down the City would not want to leave the 
path coming to an end at the road in this location.  The suggestion was given to consider 
utilizing the neck of the parking lot to enter into.  Councilor Jenkins stated she still feels it 
would make sense to end at the parking lot.  Mr. Moulding stated the traffic engineer 
recommendation was to get away from the driveway entrance.  Councilor Gibby stated he 
feels it cost effective to leave the paving in; and an acceptable alternative would be to 
stripe and connect to the other side when it becomes necessary. 
 
Inquiry was raised as to construction timing, with Mr. Moulding stating they could begin 
anytime after July 1, 2005.  It was determined that staff could bring back additional 
information or proposals by the next meeting or within reasonable time to inform the bidder 
prior to inception of the project.   Councilor Gibby stating he would like to stick with the 
original motion to allow Mr. Moulding to either put it in or not.  He stated he likes the idea, 
but if a tunnel is to be installed and the money would be wasted, it would not be a good 
move.  It was determined Mr. Moulding would bring back any other options.    
 
 



City Council Regular Meeting 
June 21, 2005 

8 

Consideration of Requested Budget Information 
Mr. Fortie referenced the items moved from FY06 budget to be purchased in FY05.  He 
stated there are a couple of items not listed; including the transfer of funds from General 
Fund to Motor Pool ($35,300) and Information Technology ($28,650).  He stated these 
numbers were included in the original budget and since moved to be spent in FY05.  He 
stated there are still items that departments have been purchasing or are going to purchase 
that have not been moved.  He stated these were only moved if they included a detailed line 
item, as he has no idea as to what else makes up the account line balance.  He stated each 
department would have to answer those questions. 
 
Mr. Fortie stated he did provide Community Services information to Councilor Haws of some 
items not included in FY06 budget.  He stated the intent is to purchase plates, bowls, 
utensils, cups, mugs, billiard tables and furnishings for the Senior Facility.   
 
Councilor Jenkins questioned the placement of $100,000 in FY05 for Senior Facility 
furnishings; and inquired if these are additional purchases within that amount or now 
additional.  Mr. Hansen stated these purchases are within the $100,000; but he would like 
to talk more about why this is being done this way.  He stated there is an actual item on the 
RDA agenda that deals with why this would be done prior to fiscal year end and outside of 
the RDA account.  He stated there are reasons that dovetail in with proposed change orders 
and issues with regard to construction finishing that may need extra wiggle room in the 
proposed resolution.  Mr. Hansen summarized the intent is not to spend more than 
$100,000; whether it comes out of RDA or this account.  He stated the reasoning for taking 
it out of this particular account will become more apparent. 
 
Councilor Brough inquired if the $100,000 is being used to purchase furnishings, such as the 
purchase of washer and dryer units.  Mr. Hansen stated a separate RDA action will furnish 
the remaining units.  He explained if residents were willing to pay extra, the washer/dryer 
units would be installed; however were not part of the $100,000.  He referenced additional 
consideration being brought before the RDA Board, stating these will not be purchased 
unless contact is made with residents and they agree for extra payment per month.  He 
clarified that 13 of the 16 rentals have indicated they would pay extra. 
 
Mr. Fortie referenced the retirement benefits/employer contributions spreadsheet in 
response to the Council question as to the practice of other local cities.  He stated it does 
not appear that Riverdale is out of line with other cities; some do 401 and not 457; some do 
both.  He stated Riverdale appears to be within the median range. 
 
Mr. Fortie referenced the questions and answers worksheet from the May 14, 2005 
Strategic Planning Budget Work Session.  The Council felt this information as provided to 
be appropriate.     
 
Motion Councilor Gibby moved for approval of Resolution #13-2005 amending the 

budget for the City of Riverdale for FY2005 (July 1, 2004 – June 30, 2005) as 
proposed and referenced by attached Exhibit “A”.  Councilor Brough seconded 
the motion.  



City Council Regular Meeting 
June 21, 2005 

9 

Roll call vote.  Councilor Hadden, Yes; Councilor Brough, Yes; Councilor Gibby, 
yes; Councilor Haws, Yes; and  Councilor Jenkins, Yes.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

Councilor Haws stated he would like explanation as to the Resolution reference under 
Revenues in Excess of Amounts Anticipated; (b) the balance to the General Fund providing it 
does not exceed the eighteen percent allowed by Utah Code and any amounts over the 
eighteen percent (18%) shall be applied as follows:  (1) Capital Projects Fund.  He expressed 
concern that he does not feel this to be written clearly; as there is more than one option.  
Mr. Fortie stated sometimes there are additional transfers; however, this year the only 
transfer is to Capital Projects. 
 
Consideration of Budget – Fiscal Year 2005-2006 
 Resolution #14-2005 adopting FY 2006 Amendments Log 
Mr. Fortie referenced Exhibit “A”, Tentative Budget – FY 2006, Amendments Log.  He 
stated several items have been added (#12-#16); and briefly addressed each.  These 
included the Fire Department receiving a grant; relocation of overtime budget from Public 
Works to Community Development to provide for necessary Building Inspector time; removal 
of professional services budget for emergency operations person within the Fire 
Department; removal of part-time to full-time lead clerk position per City Council direction; 
and action taken to move the City Attorney as Department Head of a new Legal Department 
to replace former judicial accounts. 
 
Councilor Haws expressed concern that full-time wages for the new Legal Department Head 
increased $26,429; and full-time wages also increased $63,925.  He stated he was shocked 
about the increase in full-time wages to move the Attorney into the Legal Department; and 
would question the $63,925 increase as well.  Mayor Burrows explained part of the increase 
is due to the decision to retain the part-time Prosecutors as well as include a part-time 
Justice Court Judge.  He clarified these were formerly included under City Administration; 
and the judges salary was moved from full-time to part-time; and the Prosecutor wages 
transferred into part-time. 
 
Councilor Haws stated this budget contains a great deal of funding which could be spent.  
He stated he will be keeping his eye on this budget and will want to take a look at this again 
later; and feels the need to modify the numbers to become more realistic as to budgetary 
needs.  Mr. Hansen stated although there is money within the budget that could be spent; 
staff does not arbitrarily spend money just because it is budgeted.  Mayor Burrows stated 
there are many departments that turn money back into the General Fund at the end of each 
year. 
 
Councilor Jenkins inquired as to the location of wage transfer from City Administration to 
Legal in the amount of $78,354.  She stated she does not see where this lump sum was 
added back in.  Mr. Fortie explained the full amount went into full-time wages under legal; 
and because the judges salary was moved from full-time to part-time; the result is the net 
difference. 
 



City Council Regular Meeting 
June 21, 2005 

10 

Motion Councilor Gibby moved for approval of Resolution #14-2005 adopting the Fiscal 
Year 2006 Amendments Log to the tentative budget for the City of Riverdale 
for Fiscal Year 2006 (July 1, 2005 – June 30, 2006) as proposed and 
represented as Exhibit “A”.  Councilor Hadden seconded the motion.  

Councilor Jenkins discussed a situation wherein she and Mr. Fortie have been trying to get 
behind what is going on with the surcharge on local cell phone usage.  She explained some 
time ago, Mr. Hansen brought forth a lump sum that could possibly be gained by Riverdale 
taking a surcharge on local cell phone usage.  She stated the Council voted against this 
surcharge; yet she has been paying it for over two years and it has been coming out in the 
name of Riverdale City. 
 
Councilor Jenkins stated Mr. Fortie has been bounced around trying to find out who is 
getting the money; as Riverdale is not.  She stated there is the question as to whether their 
software is even capable of breaking this down to the line item when talking about every 
state and every individual municipality that may opt in or out of the surcharge.  Councilor 
Jenkins stated she has concern as to where this money has been going; and the fact the 
Council voted “no” and yet citizens may still be paying.  She stated she would like to direct 
staff to pursue this to determine who is collecting the surcharge amount. 
 
Mr. Hansen stated the state mandates keeping track of these types of things; and Riverdale 
voted against it to save money and yet the residents are paying anyhow.  He stated this 
could involve a revenue adjustment.  Councilor Jenkins stated it may be better to reconsider 
whether or not to take this money because it is not known as to whether a city can even opt 
out.  She stated she has been paying this since February 2003, yet the issue did not even 
come before the City Council until May 2004. 
 
Mayor Burrows stated all franchises and surcharges were repealed years ago.  Mr. Hansen 
stated this is of a different nature, and he would like to follow up on this because there are 
so many cell phone companies and so many different ways to do this.  He stated this is a 
peculiar surcharge over which the Tax Commission should have oversight.  He stated he 
would suggest allowing staff to pursue and if there is something that needs to come back; 
this could potentially involve official steps to adopt or recapture taxes that have been 
collected and not turned over.  He stated if there is the need to amend the revenue budget 
in the future; this could be done. 
 
Councilor Jenkins stated she would recommend everyone check their phone bills. 
 
Councilor Haws inquired as to the personnel listing that one full-time water person has not 
been hired in Public Works.  He stated he thought this was budgeted for the first time in 
FY2005; and would question the new one included in the FY2004 budget.  He stated he had 
thought that was when the Meter Reader was moved from part-time to full-time.  Mr. 
Moulding explained that position was filled; and another added in FY2005 budget which has 
never been filled.  Mr. Hansen discussed the bonafide attempt to reflect authorized versus 
actual personnel; and try to reconcile to provide a clear picture and help Administration 
understand needs. 
 



City Council Regular Meeting 
June 21, 2005 

11 

Councilor Haws stated in looking at the Public Works budget actual expenses in full-time 
salaries versus budgeted; this should reflect under budget by a full-time position.  Mr. 
Hansen referenced the spending of about $14,000 per month; ending up at approximately 
$171,000 out of budgeted $215,000.  He stated this is truly reflecting considerable 
savings.  Councilor Haws stated the budgeted amount for this position is unknown.  Mr. 
Hansen assured him that the budgeted wages and benefits reflect the savings; and this new 
position is not included in FY2006 budget. 
 
Call to Question 

Roll call vote.  Councilor Brough, Yes; Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor Haws, yes; 
Councilor Jenkins, Yes; and  Councilor Hadden, Yes.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
 Resolution #15-2005 Adopting FY2006 Budget for All Funds 
Mr. Fortie referenced the proposed resolution providing for adoption of the Fiscal Year 
2006 Budget.   
 

Motion Councilor Gibby moved for approval of Resolution #15-2005 adopting a Budget 
for the City of Riverdale for Fiscal Year 2006 (July 1, 2005 – June 30, 2006) as 
proposed.  Councilor Brough seconded the motion.  

 
Roll call vote.  Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor Hadden, Yes; Councilor Haws, Yes; 
Councilor Jenkins, Yes; and Councilor Brough, Yes.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
 Resolution #16-2005 Adopting FY2006 Certified Tax Rate 
Mr. Fortie explained the Certified Tax Rate is usually still in the hands of Weber County at 
the time of budget adoption; however, he just recently received information and would like 
to put it before the City Council.  He stated the provided rate is typically signed by the 
County Auditor, however, was not.  He wanted confidence the rate provided is accurate and 
was told the lack of signature was merely an oversight.   
 
Mr. Fortie stated the Certified Tax Rate is .001115; and the current rate is .001150 (3.5 mil 
levy points less).  He stated the City can adopt up to the .001115; and cannot continue to 
carry the same rate because of the variable factors included.  He stated the rate, even 
though it changes, is considered to be the same as last year and involves a complex formula.  
Mr. Hansen stated the new rate includes new growth and adjustments; and the dollar 
amount on the Truth in Taxation is the same dollar amount as last year plus new growth 
adjusted for equalization and appeals and actual collection rates – all factor into this 
calculation as well.  He stated this number is a cannot-exceed number unless Riverdale wants 
to conduct a Truth in Taxation Hearing. 
 
Councilor Haws expressed concern as to estimated revenue of $371,028; yet $420,000 is 
included in the budget.  He inquired as to the potential $50,000 shortage.   Councilor 
Jenkins discussed the revenue side of the budget and the areas of expenditure; and 



City Council Regular Meeting 
June 21, 2005 

12 

inquired what would be done as a result of the shortage.  Mr. Fortie explained this would 
have to be collected somewhere else or the budget could be amended by that amount.  Mr. 
Hansen provided context with regard to FY2005; wherein $410,000 was budgeted and 
$363,000 collected.  He stated irrespective of what has been placed in the budget, actual 
disbursements are based on appeals of equalization and assessed rates; yet dollar-wise equal 
the same amount.  He stated basically, that number will be about right on the money with 
what was collected this year; even though the budget reflects a different amount. 
 
Mr. Hansen explained that typically, staff does not receive this rate early enough to include 
it as a factor in our budget.  He stated this is typically factored higher because only what is 
estimated can be utilized; and it would not be beneficial if this estimate is low.  Mr. Hansen 
stated he would suggest staff adopt the Certified Tax Rate and could amend the revenue 
budget in the future if necessary.  He stated if the Council determines not to adopt this 
rate and would prefer a higher rate; they would have to hold a Truth in Taxation hearing. 
 
Motion Councilor Brough moved for approval of Resolution #16-2005 adopting a 

Certified Tax Rate for the City of Riverdale for Fiscal Year 2006 (July 1, 2005 
– June 30, 2006) in the amount of .001115 as proposed.  Councilor Gibby 
seconded the motion.  

 
Roll call vote.  Councilor Hadden, Yes; Councilor Haws, Yes; Councilor Jenkins, 
Yes; Councilor Brough, Yes; and Councilor Gibby, Yes.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
 Ordinance #646 setting new Mayor, Council & Judge Salaries 
Mr. Fortie stated the proposed ordinance provides for amendments in Mayor, Council 
expense and salaries; and the Justice Court Judge hourly wage.  He stated staff made the 
attempt to clarify the Council’s desires, based upon Strategic Planning discussions to make 
it clear and to disclose elected official salaries. 
 
Councilor Haws expressed concern that he had asked for modification from $308.00 per 
month to reflect $154.00 per meeting.  Councilor Jenkins stated the Council is voting on 
what they pay themselves and may be scrutinized; so this should be made as clear as 
possible.  She stated she would rather state $154.00 per meeting.  There appeared to be 
consensus to change to per meeting and strike out reference to two meetings per month in 
effort to be consistent. 
 
Mr. Hansen addressed another issue that has been long-standing and was ongoing when 
Mayor Jones was in office.  He stated language was inserted due to the Mayor attending 
other meetings; and there was prior decision made years ago that he would receive payment 
for two additional meetings per month.  He stated staff conducted research in effort to 
try to figure out how this came about; but have determined it must have been by intent 
because it was never reflected in ordinance.  He stated for clarification, staff feels that 
such language should now be included. 
 



City Council Regular Meeting 
June 21, 2005 

13 

Discussion followed regarding the meetings which the Mayor attends.  Mayor Burrows 
stated he attends many meetings; however, does not get paid for several.  It was felt the 
wording should reflect payment for meetings outside of Council meeting.  Councilor Brough 
expressed concern that she feels the ordinance reads clearer now than changing the 
wording as proposed.  Under the Mayor salary, it was felt that $426.00 payment for two 
additional meetings should be amended to reflect $213.00 per meeting in order to remain 
consistent.  
 
Councilor Haws inquired as to the purpose of the Exhibit “A” table reflecting salary per 
meeting in 2005 and 2006.  Mr. Hansen stated this is a summary used in prior adoption of 
Mayor/Council salary ordinance change in effort to reflect the meeting rate change; and 
further encompasses RDA meeting and Executive Director payment. 
 
Councilor Jenkins referenced Justice Court Judge salary, and expressed the desire to 
amend the wording from “salary” to “hourly” wage.  There appeared to be consensus to make 
the wording change from salary to wage; in both locations as stated. 
 
Motion Councilor Gibby moved for approval of Ordinance #646 amending Title 1, 

Chapter 7, Section 2(A) & (B) of the Riverdale Municipal Ordinance Code by 
setting new expense allowance amendments; salaries for the Mayor & City 
Council members; and amending Title 1, Chapter 7 (F), Section 6, by setting new 
salary for the Justice Court Judge; and including wording change under this 
section from “salary” to “wage”; and including Exhibit “A” as proposed.  Councilor 
Hadden seconded the motion.  

 
Roll call vote.  Councilor Brough, No; Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor Haws, Yes; 
Councilor Jenkins, Yes; and Councilor Hadden, Yes.  The motion passed 4-1. 

 
Discretionary Business 
Mayor Burrows stated there is $2,000 remaining balance in the Partners in Education fund.  
He stated Riverdale Elementary has written a letter requesting the balance and he would 
like to address this under discretionary business.  He stated the request is within the 
budgeted amount; and would not require a budget amendment.   
 
Mayor Burrows stated he would propose approval of $2,000 to Riverdale Elementary School 
to match some of the grant monies they have applied for to be used for math purposes and 
reading program. 
 
Motion Councilor Brough moved to approve allocation of the remaining $2,000 Partners 

in Education funding to Riverdale Elementary School for the purposes stated.  
Councilor Jenkins seconded the motion. 

 
Councilor Haws stated he was in the elementary school and was talking to the secretary; 
who mentioned and thanked him for the payment Riverdale already contributed to the 
school.  He stated he indicated that the City Council had budgeted a certain amount and the 
full budget had not been spent.  He expressed concern that letters had been sent to all 



City Council Regular Meeting 
June 21, 2005 

14 

schools informing them of the budgeted money and they could apply; and that last year in 
fact some money went unspent.    
 
Councilor Haws stated he informed the Riverdale Elementary Secretary there was funding 
remaining and if someone did not apply, it would not be spent.  He stated there was nothing 
stopping them for applying for more just because they have already received one donation.  
He stated he would suggest that next year when letters are sent to elementary school 
principals they indicate this fact.  Mayor Burrows stated he has disclosed this type of 
information and still has yet to receive requests from other schools.  Councilor Haws stated 
he would just like to make it clear for the record that Riverdale Elementary was given two 
allocations simply because they asked; and no other requests had been made. 
 
Mayor Burrows stated he wants to be good Partners in Education, but has a hard time 
because of having to ask Department Heads to be so frugal in their budgets.  He expressed 
concern as to having to advertise that this funding is available; and stated if it is wanted 
bad enough – they will ask.  He stated these people have been provided multiple notices 
there is available funding, and it merely takes initiative on their part.  He stated he does 
not think the City is at fault. 
 
Councilor Haws suggested some type of notice to be sent to schools that reminds them of 
their continual endeavors for donations; and yet funding is available for which they did not 
apply.  He expressed frustration that schools continually go before the Legislature in 
search of money and yet the City tries to partner and they won’t even come and make a 
simple request.  Mayor Burrows stated he understands this frustration.  He stated the City 
has gone above and beyond in placing playground equipment in two schools as well.  He stated 
he feels the Partners in Education Policy was put in place for a reason and should remain as 
is unless the Council chooses to make amendments. 
 
Call to Question 

Roll call vote.  Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor Haws, Yes; Councilor Jenkins, Yes; 
Councilor Hadden, Yes; and Councilor Brough, Yes.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
Appearance of Gas Station at 300 West 
Inquiry was made as to the appearance of the former gas station on the south side of 300 
West.  Mr. Daily stated staff is awaiting a site plan prior to demolition.  He explained he has 
refused to move forward until there is firm site plan approval; and the issue has been 
before the Planning Commission.  He stated a business license was approved in the existing 
facility; however, the owner chose not to open and determined to demolish and build a 
carwash, new convenience store, gas island, and interior restaurant.  He stated the sign has 
been removed and improvements to the site should happen in the near future. 
 
With no further business to come before the Council at this time, Councilor Haws moved to 
adjourn the meeting.  Councilor Brough seconded the motion.  The motion passed 
unanimously.  The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:14 p.m. 
 



City Council Regular Meeting 
June 21, 2005 

15 

 
Attest:       Approved:    July 5, 2005 
 
 
 
__________________________                              ___________________________ 
Cindi Mansell, City Recorder    Bruce Burrows, Mayor  
 
 
 


